

available regarding the advantages and disadvantages of the subject developmental operations.

OMB Control No.: 3060-0222.

Title: Section 97.213, Remote Control of a Station.

Form No.: N/A.

Type of Review: Extension of a currently approved collection.

Respondents: Individuals or households, business or other for-profit entities.

Number of Respondents: 500.

Estimated Time Per Response: .2 hours (12 minutes).

Frequency of Response:

Recordkeeping requirement.

Total Annual Burden: 100 hours.

Annual Reporting and Recordkeeping Cost Burden: N/A.

Needs and Uses: The recordkeeping requirement contained in section 97.213 consists of posting a photocopy of the amateur station license, a label with the name, address, and telephone number of the station licensee, and the name of at least one authorized control operator. This requirement is necessary so that quick resolution of any harmful interference problems can be identified and to ensure that the station is operating in accordance with the Communications Act of 1934, as amended. The information is used by FCC staff during inspections and investigations to assure that remotely controlled amateur radio stations are licensed in accordance with applicable rules, statutes and treaties. In the absence of this recordkeeping requirement, field inspections and investigations related to harmful interference could be severely hampered and needlessly prolonged due to inability to quickly obtain vital information about a remotely controlled station.

OMB Control No.: 3060-0259.

Title: Section 90.263, Substitution of Frequencies Below 25 MHz.

Form No.: N/A.

Type of Review: Extension of a currently approved collection.

Respondents: Business or other for profit, and State, local, or Tribal governments.

Number of Respondents: 60.

Estimated Time Per Response: .5 hours.

Frequency of Response: On occasion reporting requirement.

Total Annual Burden: 30 hours.

Annual Reporting and Recordkeeping Cost Burden: N/A.

Needs and Uses: Section 90.263 requires applicants proposing operations in certain frequency bands below 25 MHz to submit supplemental

information showing such frequencies are necessary from a safety of life standpoint, and information regarding minimum necessary hours of operation. This requirement will be used by Commission staff in evaluating the applicant's need for such frequencies and the interference potential to other stations operating on the proposed frequencies.

OMB Control No.: 3060-0264.

Title: Section 80.413, On-Board Station Equipment Records.

Form No.: N/A.

Type of Review: Extension of a currently approved collection.

Respondents: Individuals or households, business or other for profit, not-for-profit institutions, and State, local, or Tribal government.

Number of Respondents: 1,000.

Estimated Time Per Response: 2 hours.

Frequency of Response:

Recordkeeping requirement.

Total Annual Burden: 2,000 hours.

Annual Reporting and Recordkeeping Cost Burden: N/A.

Needs and Uses: The recordkeeping requirement contained in section 80.413 is necessary to document the number and type of transmitters operating under an on-board station license. The information is used by FCC staff during inspections and investigations to determine what mobile units and repeaters are associated with on-board stations aboard a particular vessel. If this information were not collected, no means would be available to determine if this type of radio equipment is authorized or who is responsible for its operation. Enforcement and frequency management programs would be negatively affected.

OMB Control No.: 3060-0297.

Title: Section 80.503, Cooperative Use of Facilities.

Form No.: N/A.

Type of Review: Extension of a currently approved collection.

Respondents: Individuals or households, business or other-for-profit, not-for-profit institutions, and State, local, or Tribal government.

Number of Respondents: 100.

Estimated Time Per Response: 16 hours.

Frequency of Response:

Recordkeeping requirement.

Total Annual Burden: 1,600 hours.

Annual Reporting and Recordkeeping Cost Burden: N/A.

Needs and Uses: The recordkeeping requirements contained in section 80.503 are necessary to ensure licensees which share private facilities operate within the specified scope of service, on

a non-profit basis, and do not function as communications common carriers providing ship-shore public correspondence services. The information is used by FCC staff during inspections and investigations to insure compliance with applicable rules. If this information was not available, enforcement efforts could be hindered, frequency congestion in certain bands could increase, and the financial viability of some public coast radiotelephone stations could be threatened.

Federal Communications Commission.

Marlene H. Dortch,

Secretary.

[FR Doc. 03-21503 Filed 8-21-03; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 6712-01-P

FEDERAL COMMUNICATIONS COMMISSION

[EB Docket No. 03-152; FCC 03-158]

William L. Zawila, Avenal Educational Services, Inc., Central Valley Educational Services, Inc., H.L. Charles d/b/a Ford City Broadcasting, Linda Ware d/b/a Lindsay Broadcasting, and Western Pacific Broadcasting, Inc.—Order To Show Cause, Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, and Hearing Designation Order

AGENCY: Federal Communications Commission.

ACTION: Notice.

SUMMARY: In this document, the Commission issued an Order to Show Cause why the construction permits of broadcast stations KNGS(FM), Coalinga, California, KAAX(FM), Avenal, California, KAJF(FM), Firebaugh, California, and KZPE(FM), Ford City, California, and the license of broadcast station KZPO(FM), Lindsay, California, should not be revoked, and Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, and an Order designating for hearing the application for renewal of license of broadcast station KKFO(AM), Coalinga, California. **DATES:** Petitions by persons desiring to participate as a party in the hearing may be filed not later than September 22, 2003, pursuant to 47 CFR 1.223. See **SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION** for dates that named parties should file appearances.

ADDRESSES: Federal Communications Commission, Enforcement Bureau, 445 12th Street, SW., Washington, DC 20554. See **SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION** for further filing instructions.

FOR FURTHER INFORMATION CONTACT: William Freedman, Deputy Chief,

Enforcement Bureau, Investigations and Hearings Division, (202) 418-1420; Thomas Nessinger, Attorney-Advisor, Media Bureau, Audio Division, (202) 418-2700.

SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION: This is a summary of the Commission's Order to Show Cause, Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, and Hearing Designation Order, FCC 03-158, released July 16, 2003.

In the Order to Show Cause, the Commission set forth facts supporting the conclusion that the construction permits of broadcast stations KNGS(FM), Coalinga, California, KAAX(FM), Avenal, California, KAJP(FM), Firebaugh, California, and KZPE(FM), Ford City, California, and the license of broadcast station KZPO(FM), Lindsay, California, should be revoked, and offered the permittees/licensees of those broadcast stations the opportunity for hearing on the issues specified. In the Hearing Designation Order, the Commission determined there was a substantial and material question of fact as to whether the application of Western Pacific Broadcasting, Inc. ("WPBI") for renewal of the license of broadcast station KKFO(AM), Coalinga, California, should be denied, and designated for hearing the KKFO(AM) application for renewal of license.

Station KNGS(FM), Coalinga, California (permitted to William L. Zawila ["Zawila"]) and station KAAX(FM), Avenal, California (permitted to Avenal Educational Services, Inc.) were to have constructed a 91-meter tower near Avenal, California, on which the antennas for both stations were to be located. Both applicants filed license applications representing that both stations had been constructed as authorized. An informal objector presented evidence, confirmed by Commission investigation, that one month after the license applications were filed, the actual transmitting facilities consisted of two 50-foot telephone poles with no main studio facilities. Upon inquiry, Zawila represented that the 91-meter tower had been constructed but was destroyed by vandalism. Commission investigation indicated that Zawila's representations were false, and that the facilities of KNGS(FM) and KAAX(FM) were not constructed according to the permits.

Commission investigation of station KAJP(FM), Firebaugh, California (permitted to Central Valley Educational Services, Inc., of which Zawila is an officer) yielded substantial and material questions of fact as to whether the original antenna was constructed

according to the station's construction permit. Investigation also revealed no program origination or Emergency Alert System ("EAS") equipment at the KAJP(FM) studio. The facilities of station KZPE(FM), Ford City, California (permitted to H.L. Charles d/b/a Ford City Broadcasting) were non-operational, consisting of an antenna mounted on a telephone pole, no main studio facilities, non-operational transmission equipment, and a site that had no power and which was so remote that gasoline to operate a power generator could not be delivered. H.L. Charles, the permittee, referred all questions regarding the station's operation to her "manager," Zawila. Station KZPO(FM), Lindsay, California, is licensed to Linda Ware d/b/a Lindsay Broadcasting. In response to the Commission's pre-hearing inquiry, Zawila represented that Ms. Ware was deceased, but did not provide a date of death, and no application for transfer of control to the administrator of Ms. Ware's estate has been filed. Commission investigators found KZPO(FM)'s main studio is not located as indicated in its license, and that the main studio is not properly staffed. Investigators also determined that KZPO(FM)'s public file is incomplete, that there was no EAS equipment at the transmitter site or main studio, and that transmitter power output was in excess of that authorized.

In the Hearing Designation Order, the Commission set forth facts raising a substantial and material question of fact as to whether Zawila, as sole shareholder of WPBI, misrepresented facts to and/or lacked candor with the Commission by, among other things, representing that KKFO(AM) had lost its site due to redevelopment by the City of Coalinga, and representing that he was in negotiations with the City for return to the site, when in fact City officials denied such representations. The Commission also determined through investigation that WPBI failed to maintain properly staffed main studios for KKFO(AM); failed to maintain station logs or to make station logs and station facilities available for inspection by Commission representatives; failed to provide records and information to Commission representatives on request; failed timely to notify the Commission that KKFO(AM) was not adhering to a minimum operating schedule or failed to make an informal written request for additional time to restore a minimum operating schedule; failed to maintain a complete public file at the main studio of KKFO(AM) or at an accessible place in the community of license; failed to

make equipment performance measurements upon installation of a new or replacement main transmitter and annually thereafter; failed to maintain and operate KKFO(AM) in a manner that complies with the technical rules set forth in Commission rules and in accordance with the KKFO(AM) station authorization; and failed to transmit broadcast signals for a period of over twelve consecutive months, causing the expiration of the KKFO(AM) license as a matter of law. Pursuant to sections 312(a) and 312(c) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. 312(a) and (c), and 47 CFR 1.91(a), William L. Zawila, Avenal Educational Services, Inc. ("AES"), Central Valley Educational Services, Inc. ("CVES"), and H.L. Charles d/b/a Ford City Broadcasting ("FCB") are directed to show cause why the construction permits for KNGS(FM), Coalinga, California; KAAX(FM), Avenal, California; KAJP(FM), Firebaugh, California; and KZPE(FM), Ford City, California, should not be revoked and all authority to operate said stations terminated, at a hearing before an F.C.C. Administrative Law Judge, at a time and place to be specified in a subsequent Order, upon the following issues:

1. To determine whether William L. Zawila, individually and/or as an officer of AES and CVES, or on behalf of FCB, misrepresented facts to and/or lacked candor with the Commission in his statements regarding the construction and/or operation of the facilities of KNGS(FM), KAAX(FM), KAJP(FM), and KZPE(FM), and in his statements in response to official Commission inquiries regarding the operation of said stations, in violation of section 312(a)(1) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. 312(a)(1), and/or 47 CFR 73.1015;

2. To determine whether William L. Zawila, individually and/or as an officer of AES and CVES, or on behalf of FCB, willfully or repeatedly violated 47 CFR 73.1690(b)(2) by moving the antennas of KNGS(FM), KAAX(FM), KAJP(FM), or KZPE(FM) to different towers without a construction permit;

3. To determine whether William L. Zawila, AES, CVES and/or FCB willfully or repeatedly violated 47 CFR 73.1125 of the rules, by failing to maintain properly staffed main studios for KNGS(FM), KAAX(FM), KAJP(FM), and KZPE(FM), and by failing to have a local telephone number in the communities of license for KNGS(FM) and KAAX(FM), or toll-free telephone numbers for those stations;

4. To determine whether William L. Zawila, AES, CVES, and/or FCB

willfully or repeatedly violated 47 CFR 73.3526, by failing to maintain proper public inspection files for KNGS(FM), KAAX(FM), KAJF(FM), and KZPE(FM);

5. To determine whether William L. Zawila, AES, and/or CVES willfully or repeatedly violated 47 CFR 17.57, by failing to notify the Commission within 24 hours of completion of construction of towers for which Antenna Registration Numbers had been assigned, or of changes in the structures' heights, for the towers on which the antennas of KNGS(FM), KAAX(FM), and KAJF(FM) were to have been mounted;

6. To determine whether William L. Zawila was an undisclosed real party in interest in FCB's application for license, or whether William L. Zawila and/or FCB willfully or repeatedly violated section 310(d) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. 310(d), and/or 47 CFR 73.3540(a), by Zawila's assuming control of KZPE(FM) without prior Commission authorization; and

7. To determine, in light of the evidence adduced under the foregoing issues, whether William L. Zawila, AES, CVES, and/or FCB possess the requisite qualifications to be or remain permittees of their respective radio stations.

Pursuant to sections 312(a) and 312(c) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. 312(a) and (c), and 47 CFR 1.91(a), William L. Zawila and Linda Ware d/b/a Lindsay Broadcasting ("LB") or her successor(s) in interest are directed to show cause why the license for KZPO(FM), Lindsay, California should not be revoked and all authority to operate said station terminated, at a hearing before an F.C.C. Administrative Law Judge, at a time and place to be specified in a subsequent Order, upon the following issues:

1. To determine whether William L. Zawila, individually and/or on behalf of LB, misrepresented facts to and/or lacked candor with the Commission in his statements regarding the construction and operation of the facilities of KZPO(FM), and in his statements in response to official Commission inquiries regarding the operation of said station, in violation of section 312(a)(1) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. 312(a)(1), and/or 47 CFR 73.1015;

2. To determine whether William L. Zawila and/or LB willfully or repeatedly violated section 310(d) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. 310(d) and/or 47 CFR 73.3540(a) of the rules, by Zawila's assuming control of KZPO(FM) without prior Commission authorization;

3. To determine whether Zawila and/or LB willfully or repeatedly violated 47

CFR 11.15, 11.35(a), 11.35(c), and 11.52(d), by failing to maintain proper EAS equipment and proper EAS logs;

4. To determine whether William L. Zawila and/or LB willfully or repeatedly violated 47 CFR 73.1125 by failing to maintain a properly staffed main studio for KZPO(FM);

5. To determine whether Zawila and/or LB willfully or repeatedly violated 47 CFR 73.1800(a), 73.1225(a), 73.1225(c)(5), and 73.1226(a), by failing to maintain station logs and to make station logs and facilities available on request for inspection by the Commission;

6. To determine whether Zawila and/or LB willfully or repeatedly violated 47 CFR 73.1560(b), by operating station KZPO(FM) at a transmitter output power greater than 105% of authorized power;

7. To determine whether Zawila and/or LB willfully or repeatedly violated 47 CFR 73.1225(c)(2), 73.1226(c)(4), 73.1870(b)(3), and 73.1870(c)(3), by failing to maintain and make available for inspection records pertaining to the chief operator of station KZPO(FM), to post the written designation of chief operator, to maintain in the public inspection file agreements with the chief operator, and to have the chief operator review and sign station records and logs;

8. To determine whether Zawila and/or LB willfully or repeatedly violated 47 CFR 73.1350(a), by failing to maintain and operate KZPO(FM) in a manner that complies with the technical rules set forth in our rules and in accordance with its station authorization; and

9. To determine, in light of the evidence adduced under the foregoing issues, whether William L. Zawila and/or LB possess the requisite qualifications to be or remain licensees of KZPO(FM).

Pursuant to section 309(e) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. 309(e), the application of Western Pacific Broadcasting, Inc. ("WPBI") for renewal of license for KKFO(AM), Coalinga, California, File No. BR-19970804YJ, is designated for hearing before an F.C.C. Administrative Law Judge, at a time and place to be specified in a subsequent Order, upon the following issues:

1. To determine whether William L. Zawila, individually and/or on behalf of WPBI, misrepresented facts to and/or lacked candor with the Commission in his statements regarding the operation of the facilities of KKFO(AM), and in his statements in response to official Commission inquiries regarding the operation of said station, in violation of section 312(a)(1) of the Communications

Act of 1934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. 312(a)(1), and/or 47 CFR 73.1015;

2. To determine whether William L. Zawila, individually and/or on behalf of WPBI, willfully or repeatedly violated 47 CFR 73.1125, by failing to maintain properly staffed main studios for KKFO(AM);

3. To determine whether William L. Zawila, individually and/or on behalf of WPBI, willfully or repeatedly violated 47 CFR 73.1800(a), 73.1225(a), 73.1225(c)(5), and 73.1226(a), by failing to maintain station logs and to make station logs available on request for inspection by the Commission, by failing to make KKFO(AM) available for inspection by representatives of the Commission during the station's business hours, and by failing to provide records and information to Commission representatives upon request;

4. To determine whether William L. Zawila, individually and/or on behalf of WPBI, willfully or repeatedly violated 47 CFR 73.1740(a)(4), by failing to notify the Commission not later than the tenth day of limited or discontinued operation that KKFO(AM) was not adhering to a minimum operating schedule, or by failing to make an informal written request for such additional time as may be necessary to restore the minimum operating schedule;

5. To determine whether William L. Zawila, individually and/or on behalf of WPBI, willfully or repeatedly violated 47 CFR 73.3526, by failing to maintain a complete public file at the main studio of KKFO(AM) or at an accessibly place in the community of license, which is available for public inspection at any time during regular business hours;

6. To determine whether William L. Zawila, individually and/or on behalf of WPBI, willfully or repeatedly violated 47 CFR 73.1590, by failing to make equipment performance measurements upon installation of a new or replacement main transmitter, and annually thereafter;

7. To determine whether William L. Zawila, individually and/or on behalf of WPBI, willfully or repeatedly violated 47 CFR 73.1350(a), by failing to maintain and operate KKFO(AM) in a manner that complies with the technical rules set forth in the Commission's rules and in accordance with its station authorization;

8. To determine whether station KKFO(AM) failed to transmit broadcast signals for a period of over twelve consecutive months, thus causing expiration of its license under section 312(g) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. 312(g), and 47 CFR 73.1740(c); and

9. To determine, in light of the evidence adduced under the foregoing issues, whether the license for KKFO(AM) has expired pursuant to section 312(g) of the Communications Act of 1934, as amended, 47 U.S.C. 312(g), and 47 CFR 73.1740(c), or whether William L. Zawila and/or WPBI possess the requisite qualifications to be or remain licensees of KKFO(AM).

Appearances by Parties: William L. Zawila, Avenal Educational Services, Inc., Central Valley Educational Services, Inc., H.L. Charles d/b/a Ford City Broadcasting, and Linda Ware d/b/a/ Lindsay Broadcasting shall, within thirty (30) days of July 16, 2003, file a written appearance stating that they will appear at the hearing and present evidence on the matters specified in the Order to Show Cause.

Western Pacific Broadcasting, Inc. must, within twenty (20) days of mailing of notice of its designation as a party, file a written appearance in triplicate, stating that it will appear at the hearing on the date fixed for hearing and will present evidence on the issues specified in the Hearing Designation Order.

The full text of the Order to Show Cause, Notice of Opportunity for Hearing, and Hearing Designation Order is available for inspection and copying during normal business hours in the FCC Reference Information Center, Room CY-A257, 445 12th Street, SW., Washington, DC 20554. The complete text may be purchased from the Commission's copy contractor, Qualex International, 445 12th Street, SW., Room CY-B402, Washington, DC 20554. The full text may also be downloaded at: http://hraunfoss.fcc.gov/edocs_public/attachmatch/FCC-03-158A1.pdf. Alternative formats are available to persons with disabilities by contacting Martha Contee at (202) 418-0260 or TTY (202) 418-2555.

Federal Communications Commission.

Marlene H. Dortch,
Secretary.

[FR Doc. 03-21508 Filed 8-21-03; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 6712-01-P

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION

[Petition No. P5-03]

Petition of the National Customs Brokers and Forwarders Association of America, Inc. for Limited Exemption From Certain Tariff Requirements of the Shipping Act of 1984; Extension of Time

The Commission published notice of Petition No. P5-03 filed by the National

Customs Brokers and Forwarders Association of America, Inc. ("NCBFAA"), in the **Federal Register** on August 19, 2003 (68 FR 49775). That notice requested comments to the Petition by September 5, 2003. The World Shipping Counsel ("WSC") has requested an extension of time until September 24, 2003, for all parties to file comments in reply to this Petition. WSC advises that it has been authorized by NCBFAA's counsel to state that the Petitioner does not object to the requested extension. The Commission has determined to grant the request. Accordingly, comments are now due by September 24, 2003.

By the Commission.

Bryant L. VanBrakle,
Secretary.

[FR Doc. 03-21580 Filed 8-21-03; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 6730-01-P

FEDERAL MARITIME COMMISSION

[Petition No. P3-03]

Petition of United Parcel Service, Inc. for Exemption Pursuant to Section 16 of the Shipping Act of 1984 to Permit Negotiation, Entry and Performance of Service Contracts; Extension of Time

The Commission published notice of Petition No. P3-03 filed by United Parcel Service, Inc. ("UPS"), in the **Federal Register** on August 4, 2003 (68 FR 45820). That notice requested comments to the Petition by August 22, 2003. The World Shipping Counsel ("WSC") has requested an extension of time until September 24, 2003, for all parties to file comments in reply to this Petition. WSC advises that it has been authorized by UPS's counsel to state that the Petitioner does not object to the requested extension. The Commission has determined to grant the request. Accordingly, comments are now due by September 24, 2003.

By the Commission.

Bryant L. VanBrakle,
Secretary.

[FR Doc. 03-21581 Filed 8-21-03; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 6730-01-P

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM

Federal Open Market Committee; Domestic Policy Directive of June 24-25, 2003

In accordance with § 271.25 of its rules regarding availability of information (12 CFR part 271), there is set forth below the domestic policy directive issued by the Federal Open

Market Committee at its meeting held on June 24-25, 2003.¹

The Federal Open Market Committee seeks monetary and financial conditions that will foster price stability and promote sustainable growth in output. To further its long-run objectives, the Committee in the immediate future seeks conditions in reserve markets consistent with reducing the federal funds rate at an average of around 1 percent.

By order of the Federal Open Market Committee, August 18, 2003.

Vincent R. Reinhart,

Secretary, Federal Open Market Committee.
[FR Doc. 03-21568 Filed 8-21-03; 8:45 am]

BILLING CODE 6210-01-S

FEDERAL RESERVE SYSTEM

Formations of, Acquisitions by, and Mergers of Bank Holding Companies

The companies listed in this notice have applied to the Board for approval, pursuant to the Bank Holding Company Act of 1956 (12 U.S.C. 1841 *et seq.*) (BHC Act), Regulation Y (12 CFR Part 225), and all other applicable statutes and regulations to become a bank holding company and/or to acquire the assets or the ownership of, control of, or the power to vote shares of a bank or bank holding company and all of the banks and nonbanking companies owned by the bank holding company, including the companies listed below.

The applications listed below, as well as other related filings required by the Board, are available for immediate inspection at the Federal Reserve Bank indicated. The application also will be available for inspection at the offices of the Board of Governors. Interested persons may express their views in writing on the standards enumerated in the BHC Act (12 U.S.C. 1842(c)). If the proposal also involves the acquisition of a nonbanking company, the review also includes whether the acquisition of the nonbanking company complies with the standards in section 4 of the BHC Act (12 U.S.C. 1843). Unless otherwise noted, nonbanking activities will be conducted throughout the United States. Additional information on all bank holding companies may be obtained from the National Information Center website at www.ffiec.gov/nic/.

¹ Copies of the Minutes of the Federal Open Market Committee meeting on June 24-25, 2003, which includes the domestic policy directive issued at the meeting, are available upon request to the Board of Governors of the Federal Reserve System, Washington, D.C. 20551. The minutes are published in the Federal Reserve Bulletin and in the Board's annual report.